Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2007 10:40 PM
To: W

Subject: RE:

I'm glad you made it to class and found it valuable. I know it can be hard to be in
two places at once :-). In terms of your essay, I admire that you dug deeply for these
difficult emotions of anger at the nursing students and guilt at your own (perceived)
shortcomings. This might well be one of those situations where, in large part, your anger
is “righteous indignation.” Positioning an elderly patient during eating is not in any way

a trivial issue — in this case, it was literally life and death. So, when the emotional
dust settles, that anger might propel you to be more vigilant in future situations. On the
other hand, no amount of vigilance can completely guard against error, rushing, or
inattention; so that we can never guarantee perfection in ourselves or others. Partly,
your anger may have been due to this realization. In fact, the very things that might have
made the nursing students less than meticulous with this patient were similar things that
sometimes made you not want to linger in his room; and this is where the guilt comes from
as well. Just being aware of these reactions can help you work with them more consciously.

In the presence of loss, we often have “unfinished business.” In this case, on reflection,
you wished that you might have shared some of your positive feelings about your patient
with his family. It’s pretty hard to know what would have been right at the time, and
hindsight is always 20-20. But since you still have that feeling, you might want to write
the family that letter now (maybe not a “real” letter, since you probably have no way of
finding them, but as an act of closure). And then you might consider forgiving yourself
for not sharing just how funny and spirited you found this guy to be. I agree with you —
it is hard to kill a vet. It seems to me he has the potential to live on in you in a
healthy, healing way. All the best, Dr. Shapiro

From:
Sent:
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2007 3:12 PM

To: SRR,

Subject: RE: Experiencing Loss Assignment

Hi @, | wanted fo let you know that, although Dr. AR il be responding to you more fully, | also read your
essay and admired your insights and awareness. "Lessons learned” can sound a bit cliched, or as though other
people's suffering and deaths somehow exist for our benefit. But | do believe that we have an opportunity with
each such encounter to deepen our understanding and compassion such that these qualities can be enhanced in
future situations. In this sense, your learning struck me as profound. Your pafience, respeci for, and willingness
to engage with the distraught son were really impressive to me. This interaction is the perfect exampie of how a
skilled physician can diffuse and honor a family member's suffering. | alse felt your response of humiiity fo the
unexpected passing of the first patient you described, your felt realization of the limitations of medicine and the
fragility of life are essential to good doctoring. You are correct that much of medicine is about exerting control over
health and illness issues, but you soon realize that there is an awful lot that you simply can't control. Coming to
terms with this will strengthen an attitude of service, while reducing the need to control inappropriately. Thank you
so much for sharing these experiences. Best, Dr. Shapiro

11/15/2007
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent:  Thursday, November 15, 2007 10:20 PM

To: -

Subject: RE:

Dear@i Thank you so much for being willing to share your experience of doing the ultimately futile chest
compressions. You are “officially” in Dr. Robiishek’s “response” group, but | wanted 1o let you know that | read
vour essay as well, and was really struck by how strongly you were affected by this experience. There were so
many imporiant points you brought out - when do you "step up,” "step in,” and is that what makes the difference
hetween a lowly student and a physician? When is it wrong {o hang back, and when can aulomatically "doing”
lead 10 a worse cutcome for a dying patient? These are all such good questions, and you really made us think
about them. The other point that interesied me a lot was the fact that the patient's life was Herally in vour hands
and that that reality was supremely meaningful. That is something | will never experience; but your sharing
helped me to undersiand that phrase in @ much more visceral way than | ever have before. I dontknowifitwasa
baptism into reality sc much as a baptlism info the awesome responsibiiity of being a physician. Thanks for
enabling all of us to reflect on this experience. Best, Dr. Shapiro

Ffom

Sent:

To: NN ‘ —
Subject:

11/15/2007
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Shaplro Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2007 3:34 PM

To: "SR

Subject: RE: Assighment one

Deardiill®. aithough Dr. S has “formal” responsibility for responding to your essay, | wanted to let you
know that I'd read it as well and was really touched by it (and thank you for the nice ahmgs you said about AoD -
1. You've put your finger on one of the complexities of medicine: a large part of your learning is instrumental and
{ask-orienied - technigues, procedures, differential éiagnes%s. Since such things are crucial to the practice of
medicine, it is easy 1o see them as ends ("perfect sireak,” "aced the diagnosis”) rather than means to the end of
curing the patient or alievialing suffering. it is not that one approach is right and the cother is wrong; it is that you
somehow need o juggle both simultaneously because what is ultimately at stake is the potential “loss" of the
patient as a human being.

When Mr. “Jackson” died, he became a person to you. Perhaps what you need to remember is that it is by no
means always easy o connect with another person's humanity. Sometimes | have trouble finding the humanity of
a driver who unceremoniously culs me off on the freeway -). How much more s when a patient is comatose,
barely responsive efc. So you're not always going o be deeply moved by every patient who dies. But figuring out
ways of remembering our shared humanness, that every patlient is someone’s dad, mom, son, friend, is essential
fo being a good and happy doctor. In fact, your essay demonsirales very well your ability to switch from "CHF/LP*
1o re-engage with the person of this patient. That is a "streak” you really want to maintain, right up there with
those LPs! Thanks again for such a perceptive essay. Dr. Shapiro

11/15/2007



Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent: Thursday, November 15, 2007 2:14 PM
To:
Subject: RE: AOD assignment 1

Dear ‘, Dr. will be responding more fully, but I wanted to let you know I
read your essay, and found it very thoughtful and thought-provoking. I think one of your
main points is that your patient needed to grieve the loss of her foot, even though
medically it might appear she was just "wasting time"™ moping about the inevitable; and
very possibly from a medical standpoint, there may have been greater risk with delay.
Nevertheless, to me your insight is right on the money. Truly informed consent to this
amputation involves at least a partial acceptance of the loss of this body part, with all
its multiple intimations of mortality and implications for the future. That doesn't
necessarily happen on doctor time, but on patient time. I'm really glad that you could see
this. Best, Dr. Shapiro

From:
Sent:
To:

Subi
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent:  Friday, February 22, 2008 4:06 PM
To: ‘—

Cc: = uNINE

Subject: RE: Credit for missed classes

Hi ‘ Thanks for sending us this moving ?"éﬁ%iﬁ?f;}ﬁ I've ”?%85‘@ many studenis say thatl the act of pronosuncing
the patient, even ifilis s thing of a ritual, prod t iion 1o that patient’s ioss. Maybe it's
because ¥ ] ally responsibie ?@f i?8§“5§§ﬁﬂ ?g the patient from life to death. You know,
physicians (and student-physicians) have many different emotional responses that are triggered by the deaths of
giffares % = i : feel accepling, even relieved; other limes vou are angry, devastated,

despond ; 128, onest, you féss‘ﬁ‘ “‘“‘ﬁsag care all that intensely, more as a kind of non-specific
sorrow for the passing of any life. C ish i, there were many threads binding vou te her and

] } o
her family. Your fears honorsd ‘i‘%éﬁs?g ies, the courage of the father who continued o be 2
father even beyond deain. | complelely agree with your S%%‘?»ESSS%S?“QQ? ‘f’& y ‘fﬁ%% not cry ssi %‘i&e 555%‘; G? &4 fgz“}f
patient, nor should you. But thaf you §§;= cry when 2 loss foudi
remained whole, which is both a good thing for vou and also ;; §f§ ;;s‘%g ?%35 YOur ,ag'i;sfe S%zﬁ
for your sharing your thoughis and z%@%gsﬁf‘ aﬁgaﬁ this tragic situation; and happy thal, surrol
suffering, vou did not turn away from either child or parents, bui paid close attention emo
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in terms of your class pariicipation, perhaps you {or Dr. ~ can calculate what vou will need io pass th
course (I don't have the afiendance rec fé; We have three more se Sés}aa; the BBQ at Dr ?;S house; and the
final project {for which you can assume full credit). The assignment below can {ake the place of one class
attendancs

Once we know whers g@a stand, we can gégggg out what is siill needed. Best, Dr. Shapirc

From: dhoopes@gmaﬂ com [mailto:dhoopes@gmail. cam]
Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2008 11:03 PM

To: UMEEBNSRIN Shapiro, Johanna

Subject: Credit for missed classes

2/22/2008



Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent: Tuesday, January 15, 2008 12:17 AM
To: L™

Subject: RE: Assignment #2

Hey, ‘ Good luck finishing up your interviews, just don't freeze completely. Thank
you for sharing these thoughts. I like your "macroscopic perspective,” especially because
I think far too often most of us have a "microscopic perspective,” with the microscope
focused exclusively on ourselves! When our kids were growing up, unfortunately each one
had a fairly challenging medical issue. Once I remember complaining to my husband that we
were cursed, and that everyone else had such an easy life! (Embarrassing but there you
have it). He encouraged me to talk more deeply with people we knew; and lo and behold, I
learned that we were all struggling with stuff; and that many other people had much
scarier problems than ours. And that says nothing about classism, racism, and sedism that

perpetuate sc many unspeakable horrors on a daily basis around the world (and in this
country) .

You are a deep thinker, so I also appreciate the simple strategies you have for keeping
your perspective. Glancing at your friendship bracelet and seeing your father or a loved
one in every patient are useful short-cuts for reminding yourself of who you want to be
and how to get there. As Einstein said, keep it as simple as possible, but not simpler.
Best, Dr. Shapiro

————— Original Message
From:

Sent: Monday, Jaﬁuary 14, 2008 10:29 PM

To: Shapiro, Johanna ;GRS

Subject: Assignment #2




Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent: Tuesday, January 15, 2008 12:07 AM
To: oI

Subject: RE: Assignment 2: How | cope

*what a lovely reflection. Thank you for entrusting us with your thoughts! This is
only my opinion, but I think it is not either/or, but both/and. If you felt your life had
to be perpetually miserable because of others'! suffering, all that accomplishes is two
ruined lives. I guess the way I see it is that, paradoxically, it is precisely because we
can feel true grief that we can feel true joy; precisely because we suffer loss that we
can appreciate fullness. I don't mean to sound pollyannish, but it seems to me when we
look into dying and suffering clearly enough, we do not have to become jaded; but we can
become less afraid. When this happens, it makes it more possible to remain open to the
‘whole experience - as the Buddhists say, a thousand joys, a thousand sorrows. In my
judgment, you are much more victorious than victim. Keep delving into yourself. It's a
lifelong process. Best, Dr. Shapiro

Sent: Monda ;?énuary 14, 2008 6:58 PM
To: *; Shapiro, Johanna

subject: Assignment 2: How I cope
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna

Sent: Wednesday, January 16, 2008 12:24 AM
To: r

Subject: RE: Assignment 2

- | just love what you have to say below! lthas a iot to do with "don't know" mind. When someone does
something to upset us, it is easy to say, "What a jerk.” And, you know, that might be the reason: that person might
just be a jerk. But it is just as likely - in fact, I'd say a lot more likely - that, as you say, there are other explanations
that make vou feel a lot more sympathetic. Sometimes, as with the bad driver, we may never know those
"reasons” but | think, on the whole, it's wise to assume they're there; with patients, you are more likely to discover
them, although not aiways (being a patient in my book prefty much is a sufficient "reason” for a ton of otherwise
irritating behavior!). And of course, finding a reason doesn't necessarily justify or excuse behavior, it just reminds
us it has a certain logic from that person's perspective. You can still try to set limits, change, or negotiate the
behavior, but with your "everything has a reason” approach, you can do so from a place of much greater
compassion and caring. it's a powerful combination. | appreciate your insight. Dr. Shapiro

From:
Sent: Tuesday, January 15, 2008 7:53 AM

To: Shapiro, Johanna; i NERGENEGEGNE
Subject: Assignment 2

Hey Dr. Shapiro and (NN

1/16/2008
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent:  Tuesday, December 11, 2007 12:44 AM

To: ol

Subject: RE: Assignment #2

Hi‘ Thanks for turning this in so promptly :-}. | really like all your approaches. Climbing into the patient's
shoes, even if you don't want to be there initially, is an almost fail-safe way of eliciting kinder, more caring
behavior from us. | know it works for me almost every time. The frick, as you've obviously learned, is o have the
strength to put yourself in the patient’s shoes, even though you may initially feel that they don't “deserve” il.

In psychalogy, your second strategy actually has an official name: "downward comparison.” ltis an effective way
of reminding ourselves that our lives aren't the absolutely worst lives in the world :-). | know from lots of personal
practice with this one that it works well foo :-). Again, it is all about shifting our perspective and our story. When
we keep telling ourselves "poor me,” life seems pretty bleak. When we say, "Well, I'm having problems, but they
aren' as bad as what other people have to deal with,” we realize we have many blessings. Remembering all the
blessings in our fives not only helps us, but helps us be gentler with others, including patients.

Finally, you are absolutely right that the only way you can nurture and care for others is if you know how to
nurture and take care of yourself.

Good work @ | hope you will share some of these thoughts tomorrow. Best, Dr. Shapiro
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent: Wednesday, December 12, 2007 12:54 AM

To: I

Subject: RE: Assignment #2

R . ihank you for sharing the memory of your own pediatrician as a positive role-model who still inspires
you to be an oulstanding physician yourself. This is a perfect exampie of what | was trying to get at with the
*wisdom sayings" exercise, only in visual/femotional form. When you are feeling cioser o W.C. Fields than you'd
fike, vou "counteract” those emoctions with the image of your jolly, welcoming, warm, and friendly pediatrician. |
imagine that just remembering him sofiens vour (understandable) tensions and annoyances, and makes you want
tc be "like him" in your own interactions. Merry Christmas, Happy New Year, and see you in 2008 :-). Dr. Shapire

12/12/2007
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Shapiro, Johanna

From: Shapiro, Johanna
Sent: Wednesday, December 12, 2007 12:37 AM

To: o

Subject: RE: Dec 11 exercise and overall ability to finish course

Hi @D | appreciated your participation in class today - lofs of really good points. | also liked your thoughts about
The Card, and the power of trianing our minds. You {and your wife) are absolutely right in using what has been
called "neurolinguistic programming” to change apparently deeply entrenched belief systems. | love the "trick” of
writing about an ideal other, then changing from 3rd to 1st pronoun. | imagine this is very effective. | also like the
reframing of the content into positives (i.e., "doesn't think first of himself” to "giving and altruistic”). Finally, the 20 x
a day repetition I'm sure is powerful (plus linking it to using the bathroom - maybe a litile crude, but no doubt
effective :-)).

In terms of completing AcD, | appreciated your "plan” and think it should work well. | just wanted to clarify a few
things: 1) Is The Card your 2nd required assignment or an extra assignment? It doesn't really matter, but just so
we can keep track. 2) You mention substituting another written assignment for an earlier missed class. |
apologize, but | don't have that. Can you resend it (or Dan do you have this?) 7 3) According to my records, we
don't have the 1st required written assignment from you. You can turn this in any time, but again, just so you
know. Please et us know if this is not correct. 4) As we discussed in class, an outside activity (such as attending
church) can substitute for one class aftendance, so long as you write up a paragraph about how the sermon (or
anything else that you sxperienced) will help you be a befter doclor.

| hope all this makes sense. We all share the same goal - to make sure that you are able to complete AoD in a
way that is a valuable and meaningful for you - so let's keep on track in that direction. A HUGE congratulations on
your wife's pregnancy - becoming a parent is such a wonderful (although definitely challenging :-)) part of life. |
wish you both a very Merry Christmas, and a beautiful and fulfilling new year. Best, Dr. Shapiro



